
 

 

 
Gig Harbor 

City Council  
Meeting 

 

 
September 10, 2012 

 5:30 p.m. 



 
 
 

AGENDA FOR 
GIG HARBOR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Monday, September 10, 2012 – 5:30 p.m. 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Approval of City Council Minutes Aug 6, 2012. 
2. Receive and File: a) Second Quarter Finance Report; b) Planning and Building 

Committee Minutes June 4, 2012; c) Planning Commission Minutes May 3, 2012; May 
17, 2012; and June 7, 2012; d) Downtown Planning and Vision Committee Minutes: April 
25, 2012; June 12, 2012; and July 25, 2012; e) Operations & Public Projects Minutes: 
March 14 and July 19, 2012; 

3. Liquor License Action: a) Assumption - Blue Cannon Pizza; 
4. Resolution No. 909 - Sole Source Equipment Jerisich Pumpout. 
5. Resolution No. 910 – Surplus Equipment. 
6. Resolution No. 911 – Fee Schedule Update Adjustment for 2012. 
7. Acceptance of Quit Claim Deed – Old Burnham Drive Properties. 
8. East Tank Fencing / Tennis Count Fencing – Contract Authorization. 
9. Cushman Trail Project Phase 3 and 4 – Direct-Appropriations Grant Contract. 
10. Eddon Boat Park Beach Restoration Project – Escrow Agreement for Retainage. 
11. Eddon Boat Park Project – Amendment to Design Contract. 
12. Eddon Boat Park Project – Surveying Contract. 
13. Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion Phase 2 – Public Works Trust Fund Loan 

Agreement. 
14. Approval of Payment of Bills Aug. 13, 2012: Checks #70260 through #70401 in the 

amount of $1,957,929.48. 
15. Approval of Payment of Bills Aug. 27, 2012: Checks #70402 through #70506 in the 

amount of $2,073,367.47. 
16. Approval of Payment of Bills Sep. 10, 2012: Checks #70507 through #70590 in the 

amount of $1,083,452.40. 
17. Approval of Payroll for the month of July: Checks #6534 through #6737 and direct 

deposits in the amount of $334,086.15. 
18. Approval of Payroll for the month of August: Checks #6738 through #6756 and direct 

deposits in the amount of $329,415.00. 
 

OLD BUSINESS:    None scheduled. 
 

NEW BUSINESS:    
1. First Reading of Ordinance – Parking Penalties Update. 
2. First Reading of Ordinance – Extension of Interim Regulations for Collective Gardens. 
3. Public Hearing – Rush-Talmo, LLC Development Agreement Relating to Intersection 

Improvements at Wollochet Drive and Wagner Way.  
 

STAFF REPORT:  
Coastal Heritage Alliance - First Year Tenant Report for Skansie Netshed. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT / COUNCIL COMMENTS:  
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF OTHER MEETINGS: 

1. Inclusive Playground Site Tour City Park at Crescent Creek: Tue. Sep. 11th at 2:00 p.m. 
2. Donkey Creek Groundbreaking and Appreciation: Mon. Sep 17th at 3:00 p.m. 
3. Operations Committee: Thu. Sep 20th at 3:00 p.m. 
4. Wilkinson Farm Greenhouse Ribbon Cutting: Fri. Sep. 21st at 3:00 p.m. 
5. Maritime Pier Ribbon Cutting Ceremony: Mon. Sep. 24th at 3:30 p.m. 
6. Boards and Candidate Review Committee: Mon. Sep. 24th at 4:30 p.m.  

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  For the purpose of discussing potential litigation per RCW 
42.30.110(1)(i). 
 
ADJOURN:  



Page 1 of 2 
 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL GIG HARBOR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – August 6, 2012 
 

PRESENT:  Councilmembers Young, Guernsey, Perrow, Malich, Payne, Kadzik and Mayor 
Pro Tem Ekberg. 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  5:30 p.m.   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Approval of City Council Minutes July 23, 2012. 
2. Liquor License Action: Assumption – Forza Coffee Co. 
3. Receive and File: Parks Commission Minutes – July 12, 2012. 
4. Resolution 908 – Surplus Property – I.T. 
5. Eddon Boat Property Beach Restoration Project – Contract Award. 
6. Environmental Review for Jerisich Float Extension – Grette and Associates. 
7. 2012 Advertising Services Contract. 

 
MOTION: Move to adopt the Consent Agenda as presented. 
 Kadzik / Payne – unanimously approved. 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Approve and Ratify the Purchase and Sale Agreement – Rainier Yacht Harbor 
LLC.  Mayor Pro Tem Ekberg introduced the agenda item. 

 
MOTION: Move to approve and ratify the Purchase and Sale Agreement between 

the City of Gig Harbor and Rainier Yacht Harbor LLC. 
 Kadzik / Perrow –  

 
Councilmember Young explained that he asked that this item be moved to New 
Business for process reasons: it had yet to be discussed in public, it isn’t a budgeted 
item, and it doesn’t appear on any Comprehensive Plan agenda. He said that he 
doesn’t see it as a critical need at this time in light of other neglected infrastructure 
projects, and although a nice piece of property the city owns waterfront property less 
than a block away and at this high price he can’t support the purchase. He also said that 
he would like to see a financing strategy for the purchase. 

 
RESTATED MOTION: Move to approve and ratify the Purchase and Sale Agreement 

between the City of Gig Harbor and Rainier Yacht Harbor LLC. 
 Kadzik / Perrow – five voted in favor. Councilmember Young 

voted no. 
 

City Administrator Denny Richards said that he received the appraisal today, which 
came in at $1.750 million; the city’s offer is $1,674.532.00. 
 
 

Consent Agenda - 1 
Page 1 of 2



Page 2 of 2 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Mark Hoppen 8133 Shirley Avenue.  Mr. Hoppen stated that this most favorable 
acquisition the city has made in the last 20 years. 
 
Dave Morris – (no address given).  Mr. Morris echoed these comments, adding that 
long-term it’s a great opportunity to compliment the other waterfront parks, and great for 
the recently adopted resolution for the city to be favorable to boaters. He congratulated 
Council on the purchase. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
 MOTION: Move to adjourn at 5:34 p.m. 
  Kadzik / Malich – unanimously approved. 
 

      CD recorder utilized:  Tracks 1001 

                                                                                 
                                                                                                                          
Steven K. Ekberg, Mayor Pro Tem  Molly Towslee, City Clerk 
 

Consent Agenda - 1 
Page 2 of 2



Consent Agenda - 2a 
Page 1 of 9



Consent Agenda - 2a 
Page 2 of 9



Consent Agenda - 2a 
Page 3 of 9



Consent Agenda - 2a 
Page 4 of 9



Consent Agenda - 2a 
Page 5 of 9



Consent Agenda - 2a 
Page 6 of 9



Consent Agenda - 2a 
Page 7 of 9



Consent Agenda - 2a 
Page 8 of 9



Consent Agenda - 2a 
Page 9 of 9



    1  

 

     

 

DATE of MEETING: June 4, 2012 

TIME: 5:15 pm 

LOCATION: Planning/Building Conference Room 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councilmembers Guernsey, Kadzik and Young 

STAFF PRESENT: Planning Director Tom Dolan and Senior Planner Jennifer Kester  

OTHERS PRESENT: Kathy Glaser and Bill Lucason 

1.  ELECTION OF CHAIR 

DISCUSSION POINTS 
Jill Guernsey nominated Paul Kadzik and Mr. Kadzik accepted the nomination.   

RECOMMENDATION / ACTION / FOLLOW-UP.   

Paul Kadzik was elected Chair. 

2.  HOME OCCUPATIONS 

DISCUSSION POINTS 

Ms. Glaser stated that she was hoping the city could look at something that would allow 
people to have a dual purpose property since so many homeowners are under water in 
this economy.  She distributed pictures of the properties and noted that many of the 
homes are rather sad.  Mr. Kadzik stated that he was on the Planning Commission when 
the Uddenberg building was rezoned.  He noted that at the time it was very controversial 
but that ultimately it was decided that on a busy corner property it was unlikely anyone 
would build a home.   He felt that the Council had wanted the rest of Grandview to remain 
residential.  Ms. Kester went over the transitional use section of the code; however, she 
noted that the lot is not large enough.  Ms. Guernsey stated that she had heard the 
council say that they really wanted the neighborhood along Grandview to remain 
residential.  Mr. Lucason brought up the issue of signage and Mr. Dolan pointed out that 
you still have to live in the residence or it is not a home occupation.  Mr. Young noted that 
he had thought about whether there could be some kind of a conditional use or 

CITY OF GIG HARBOR  
PLANNING AND BUILDING  
COMMITTEE MEETING - MINUTES 

Consent Agenda - 2b 
Page 1 of 6



    2  

 

transitional use and that he had looked at codes in other cities.  He stated that the 
problem is always about parking and traffic.  Ms. Guernsey stated that you would still 
have to change the Comprehensive Plan designation.  Ms. Glaser stated that she is not 
living in the home and is only meeting clients periodically.  Ms. Kester stated that if she 
were allowed to have some signage perhaps she could sell it as a home with an office.   

Ms. Kester noted that home occupations in transition zones could perhaps be allowed to 
have a portable sign.  She noted that this is not a short term fix as the Planning 
Commission has a lot on their agenda.  Ms. Guernsey cautioned Ms. Glaser that going 
through this process does not guarantee that this will be approved.   

RECOMMENDATION / ACTION / FOLLOW-UP.  

Move item forward to the full council to see if they would like to put signage for home 
occupations on the Planning Commission’s work program.   

3.  SETBACKS FOR PARKS 

DISCUSSION POINTS 

Ms. Kester stated the councilmember Malich had suggested that perhaps parks should be 
exempted from setbacks.  Ms. Guernsey discussed the purposes for setbacks.  She 
stated that they would need to be clear on what the rationale would be for reducing the 
setbacks.  Mr. Young stated that setbacks in parks don’t really benefit the public, as 
having structures to the sides of the property would provide more open space and view 
corridor.  Mr. Dolan noted that anything closer than 5 feet could get you into building 
setback issues requiring fire walls, etc.  Ms. Kester noted that in Public Institutional zones 
there are no setbacks for parks.   Mr. Young noted that it in some cases it is appropriate 
for public use to have different standards than private use.   

RECOMMENDATION / ACTION / FOLLOW-UP 
No action was taken as a 5 foot setback seemed reasonable. 

4.  FOOD CARTS 

DISCUSSION POINTS 

Ms. Kester stated that the feasibility of having a committee look at food carts in the city 
right of way had been discussed.  She pointed out the difference between food carts and 
food trucks.  Ms. Guernsey said she had heard that the concept of food trucks is great 
during the summer but perhaps not downtown.  Mr. Young said he wasn’t opposed to 
having it downtown just as long as it wasn’t in on street parking.  Mr. Kadzik suggested 
that perhaps you only allow a few and only run by existing businesses.  He cautioned on 

Consent Agenda - 2b 
Page 2 of 6



    3  

 

the competition to already existing businesses.  Mr. Young noted that it has been shown 
that sometimes they attract more people and it helps surrounding businesses.  Ms. 
Guernsey asked if other small towns are allowing them.  Mr. Dolan stated that usually 
food carts don’t pencil out for a smaller town because they need more volume.  It was 
discussed whether a food truck could park in a private parking lot.  Ms. Kester pointed out 
that food carts are allowed in common areas.   

RECOMMENDATION / ACTION / FOLLOW-UP 
Staff will research other small town ordinances and analyze the code regarding food 
trucks in private property parking lots. 

5.  DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS FOR DEMONSTRATIONS PROJECTS 

DISCUSSION POINTS 

Ms. Guernsey explained that currently we only allow development agreements that 
deviate from the code when they relate to Gig Harbor North.   She suggested that perhaps 
we should discuss the possibility of allowing this in other areas of the city in order to 
promote revitalization.  Mr. Kadzik asked if that would then make it so we had to allow 
them.  Ms. Kester said no, you would have to agree to the issues within the agreement 
and it would take a majority plus one of the council.  Mr. Kadzik asked if this would also 
apply to cottage housing.  Ms. Kester stated that although it would be better to have a 
cottage housing ordinance, a development agreement could help.  She noted that council 
limited the location of deviations.  Discussion was held on how to limit it, whether it should 
just be the downtown, the DB zone or waterfront zones.  Mr. Dolan stated that a legal 
description could be written to describe the area rather than just using zones to define it.  
Mr. Young asked how you limit the number of demonstration projects and Ms. Kester said 
that yes, you could say that the council is only allowed to enter into 2 development 
agreements for demonstration projects.  Mr. Kadzik said he had seen this in other 
jurisdictions where they said they had certain areas for demonstration projects and then 
you wrote into the ordinance that it would be reevaluated after the conclusion of the 
project.  Mr. Young cautioned that whatever we allow it needs to fit within our vision.  Mr. 
Dolan noted that the criteria could be written to be consistent with the adopted vision for 
downtown and that the vision should be done in the fall.   

RECOMMENDATION / ACTION / FOLLOW-UP 
Mr. Dolan stated that staff will work the City Attorney to have something for their review in 
September/October.  

6. MEDICAL CANNABIS COLLECTIVE GARDENS 

DISCUSSION POINTS 

Consent Agenda - 2b 
Page 3 of 6



    4  

 

Mr. Dolan stated that the Planning Commission will be presenting their recommendations 
on extending the interim ordinance.  He then briefed the committee on the work done by 
the Planning Commission and how they came to their recommendation.   

RECOMMENDATION / ACTION / FOLLOW-UP. 

None needed – information only.   

7. RAILINGS IN THE HISTORIC DISTRICT 

DISCUSSION POINTS 

Ms. Kester illustrated the current regulations for railings within the historic district.  She 
stated that there have been several issues with property owners wanting to have other 
designs and getting a director’s alternative.  Additionally she noted that railings for piers 
and gangways have also been an issue because of the way the code is written.  She 
stated that staff is hoping to go to the Design Review Board and get a recommendation on 
new standards for railings in the Historic District.  Ms. Guernsey wondered if there was a 
need to be so restrictive for residential.  Mr. Dolan also noted that it costs $420.00 and 
takes 6 weeks to get a design departure from the Planning Director.  Ms. Kester also 
added that it is very difficult to enforce if people change out their railings.  Mr. Kadzik 
agreed with taking it to the Design Review Board but disagreed with just letting people 
have whatever type of railing design they wanted.  He stated that he felt that along the 
water is different than along Harborview Drive.  Some examples were discussed.  Mr. 
Young said he was in favor of opening it up as he didn’t want to control this for single 
family homes.   

RECOMMENDATION / ACTION / FOLLOW-UP 

Staff will bring this item to the Design Review Board 

OTHER BUSINESS 

Mooring Buoys in the Harbor 

Ms. Guernsey said that there has been some discussion on having a harbormaster and 
providing more mooring buoys in the harbor and that it was going to be discussed further 
at the next Downtown Planning and Visioning Committee meeting.   
 Upcoming meetings were discussed.  August 6th will be the next regularly scheduled 
Planning and Building Committee meeting at 5:30.    

Meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m.  

Consent Agenda - 2b 
Page 4 of 6



    1  

 

     

 

DATE of MEETING: August 6, 2012 

TIME: 5:45 pm 

LOCATION: Planning/Building Conference Room 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councilmembers Kadzik, Young, Guernsey 

STAFF PRESENT: Senior Planner Jennifer Kester 

SCRIBE: Diane McBane via audio recording 

 

1.  FOOD TRUCKS IN PRIVATE PARKING LOTS 

DISCUSSION POINTS 

Ms. Kester stated that she had done some research on what other cities our size were doing regarding food 
trucks and found that most were handling through a license of some sort.  She passed out ordinances from 
Toppenish, Des Moines and Enumclaw.  Ms. Kester noted that most of them exempted ice cream trucks 
that drive around rather than park somewhere.  She said that Des Moines allowed food trucks on public 
property.  Ms. Guernsey noted that there were restrictions on not locating within 300’ of an existing 
restaurant.  Discussion followed on current code and how special event licenses are issued currently.  Ms. 
Kester then explained the difference between special use permits on private property and special event 
licenses on public property.  She noted that it seemed like most cities are handling food trucks like a vehicle 
doing business rather than as a land use.  Mr. Young said that he was fine having food trucks in public or 
private parking lots but not on public streets.  He also stated he wasn’t in favor of controlling whether or not 
they could be located near another similar business.  Mr. Kadzik noted that there is a difference between 
food trucks and food carts.  Ms. Guernsey suggested that they define these types of vendors in the matrix 
and then discuss where they should be allowed.   

RECOMMENDATION / ACTION / FOLLOW-UP 
Staff will work on a matrix as a starting point for the next meeting in October.   

2.  PORTABLE SIGN MATERIALS 

DISCUSSION POINTS 

Ms. Kester stated that at the previous Council Meeting they had decided to not change the definition of 
portable signs.  She also stated that there were really no issues regarding the portable sign materials but 
rather it’s been about what they are advertising.  Mr. Kadzik asked if this could just be added to the Planning 
Commission work program and Ms. Kester asked if they wanted this to be city sponsored.  Everyone agreed 
that it should be city sponsored and that it should be about portable signs in general, not just about the 

CITY OF GIG HARBOR  
PLANNING AND BUILDING  
COMMITTEE  MEETING - MINUTES 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Consent Agenda - 2b 
Page 5 of 6



    2  

 

materials. Mr. Kadzik gave some background on how the current regulations regarding portable signs came 
about.  Discussion followed on what the goal is in looking into this subject.  Mr. Young stated that Harbor 
Greens had proposed that their type of business requires a different type of signage.  Ms. Kester cautioned 
that every business needs to be treated the same.   

RECOMMENDATION / ACTION / FOLLOW-UP.  

It was decided that there really wasn’t an issue to discuss unless the applicant wanted to put forward an 
application and proposal.  It was also suggested that Harbor Greens could come to the Planning and 
Building Committee to discuss the issue ahead of their application.   

Meeting adjourned. 

 

 

 

 

 

Consent Agenda - 2b 
Page 6 of 6



 City of Gig Harbor Planning Commission 
Work Study Session and Public Hearing 

Council Chambers 
May 3, 2012 

5:00 pm 
 
PRESENT:  Harris Atkins, Craig Baldwin, Reid Ekberg, Jim Pasin, Bill Coughlin and 
Rick Gagliano.  Michael Fisher was absent.  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Staff:  Tom Dolan, Jennifer Kester and Diane McBane 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  at 5:00 p.m.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   
 
 MOTION:  Move to approve the minutes of April 19th, 2012 as written – 
Gagliano/Ekberg - Motion carried. 
 
WORK STUDY SESSION: 
 

Medical Cannabis Collective Gardens The City of Gig Harbor Planning 
Commission is holding a public hearing to solicit community feedback on making 
permanent the City-sponsored interim regulations regarding medical cannabis 
collective gardens adopted by city Ordinance #1218, amended by Ordinance #1222 
and extended by Ordinance #1236. The following is a summary of the proposed 
zoning regulations for medical marijuana/cannabis collective gardens: 

 
1. Medical marijuana/cannabis collective gardens would be allowed as a 

conditional use only in the ED zoning district. 
2. Collective gardens would not permitted within 500 feet of any existing collective 

garden, residential zoning district, public park, community center, elementary or 
secondary school (public and private), commercial child care business or youth 
oriented facility.   

3. Collective gardens would be required to be housed in a permanent structure with 
no productions, processing or delivery visible to the public. 

 
Commissioner Pasin asked what the regulations were regarding individuals growing 
medical cannabis, and it was stated that it is legal as long as they are doing it just for 
themselves.  Commissioner Coughlin asked if the attorney had advised us to not go 
forward with this and Commissioner Ekberg said that he recalled that she said we had a 
choice.  Ms. Kester clarified that there was a question as to whether or not the 
jurisdiction was authorizing something that federal law prohibited.  She noted that there 
may be other options such as requiring a conditional use permit.  She distributed a map 
which applied a 500 foot separation and a 1000 foot separation from schools and other 
sensitive uses.  Mr. Pasin asked if the city attorney had provided information regarding 

Consent Agenda - 2c 
Page 1 of 10



how Toppenish had chosen not to allow collective gardens.  Mr. Dolan said he had not 
received that information from the city attorney.   
 
Mr. Atkins stated that he recalled that there would be some drug free zones within the 
city and wondered how they were authorized or defined.  Ms. Kester said that it was 
something the police department defined.  Mr. Dolan said the penalties are more severe 
within these zones.  Mr. Atkins wondered if the new map met the requirement of drug 
free zones and Ms. Kester said it is 1000 feet from the property line from any school 
and from the boys and girls club.  Ms. Kester said that she is printing a Woodinville 
ordinance that has prohibited collective gardens, which is something they could 
recommend.  Ms. Kester also noted that Pierce County has not started a process; they 
have not taken any action.   Mr. Gagliano asked if there were properties close enough 
to these boundaries that were not within the city that may be affected and Ms. Kester 
said no, this would not apply to properties within unincorporated Pierce County 
regardless of what we have adopted.  Mr. Pasin said that he felt there were two issues; 
there are collective gardens and then the ability for an individual to grow on their own 
property so he wanted to be sure as they discuss the issue we keep it in mind.  Ms. 
Kester said that we are only talking about collective gardens.  She noted that 
production, process and delivery does not occur when you are just growing for your own 
needs.  Mr. Coughlin pointed out that it is possible that marijuana becomes legal and 
asked are we encouraging that with this proposal.  Mr. Baldwin said that he is 
concerned with the impact that this may have on surrounding properties and their 
values.  Mr. Coughlin said that it does open a door. 
   
Ms. Kester said that this area is our last piece of major industrial level two uses and one 
of the main reasons we haven’t seen development here is because it would require a 
sewer lift station.  She pointed out some properties that already have approved projects 
and noted that it has been decided that 2 million dollars a year from the hospital benefit 
zone will go toward building this lift station in order to encourage economic development 
so within 5 years we may see people starting to develop here and is a collective garden 
part of an industrial business center.  Mr. Gagliano agreed that there is an economic 
issue.  He wondered about the proximity of this property to the hospital and should that 
be a requirement if marijuana becomes legal for medical use.  Mr. Atkins asked if the 
current ordinance addresses separation between gardens and Ms. Kester said yes 
there has to be a 500 foot separation.  Mr. Pasin said that perhaps you could have a 
conditional use as long as it was attached to a medical office building or use.  Mr. 
Gagliano wondered if it could be done through definitions.  Mr. Coughlin said that this 
area is an edge to the city and wondered if the city council did that on purpose.  Ms. 
Kester said that it was more about the separation requirements.  Since we are so linear 
it became almost impossible because of the 500’ separation requirements.  She stated 
that 500’ is a common separation from sensitive uses where minors could be impacted.  
Mr. Atkins reminded everyone about the definition of collective gardens and that it may 
work against trying to align it within an existing medical facility.  Ms. Kester agreed that 
it would be financially prohibitive.  Mr. Dolan also stated that the applicant would have to 
have a survey prepared verifying the distances.  Mr. Atkins stated that if the stigma is 
taken away of this being a controlled substance then this becomes like a food 

Consent Agenda - 2c 
Page 2 of 10



supplement.    Mr. Atkins asked if it is true that this garden could only produce 24 oz per 
patient on the premises.  Mr. Dolan said yes.  Mr. Atkins said that Issaquah has a health 
and safety permit requirement and he thought that was a good idea in order to keep 
track of the gardens.   
 
Mr. Pasin asked where does it state that each grow operation has to be separated by 
500’ feet and Ms. Kester pointed out in her staff report and in Ms. Belbeck’s memo.   
 
Mr. Atkins called a 5 minute recess before the public hearing 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
         
Ms. Kester gave a brief description of the interim ordinance and explained that this is to 
determine whether the Planning Commission would recommend to the City Council 
whether or not these regulations should be made permanent.  She summarized the 
regulations.   
 
Mr. Atkins opened the public hearing at 6:00 p.m..  There being no one wishing to 
testify, Mr. Atkins closed the public hearing.  Ms. Kester said she has not received any 
other comments from the public.  Mr. Atkins wondered if perhaps there was a message 
in that there is no public comment.  He asked each of the commissioners to give their 
thoughts on the issue. 
 
WORK STUDY SESSION 
 
Baldwin:  Recommend we prohibit them, the state has provided a mechanism and not 
sure this really does much more but it could impact properties in that area.  Could be 
doing something not sanctioned by the federal government.   
 
Gagliano:   Mostly agree to prohibit them, there is enough ways for people to get 
medical marijuana and don’t see a need for this.  We have a responsibility to respond to 
the state requirement so we could provide for an area within a medical facility.  Concept 
of individuals growing their own is limited. 
 
Ekberg:  The current interim ordinance has enough burdens; I think the ban exposes us 
to a legal fight.   In favor of recommending that the interim ordinance be made 
permanent. 
 
Atkins:  I am sympathetic to the need for medical marijuana; however, I can’t gauge 
whether this is serving that need.  I would also agree that we shouldn’t expose the city 
to legal expenses and would opt to do whatever is the least risky, probably the interim 
ordinance while expanding the limits by 1000 feet.  He suspected that the interim 
ordinance has been in effect for a while now so that might be a better approach. 
 
Pasin:  Asked if we had a definition about the delivery of cannabis.  Mr. Dolan explained 
the definition.  He said he would like to have a better definition of the delivery if we 

Consent Agenda - 2c 
Page 3 of 10



adopt this interim ordinance.  He said he felt uncomfortable placing this use in the ED.  
He has thought through how we could provide a different opportunity and didn’t have an 
answer.  He would feel a little safer in adopting in the interim ordinance with some 
modifications. 
 
Coughlin:  Said that he didn’t quite have clarity on this issue yet.  He was disappointed 
that they had not received testimony from people that there was a great need for this.  
He has concern with designating our ED as an area for this.  He wondered if they could 
just extend the interim ordinance rather than doing this before the 2012 election.  He felt 
that there was the least harm in adopting the interim ordinance and doubted that we 
would see one go in.  He would probably abstain from a vote.   
 
 MOTION:  Move that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the 
interim ordinance as written with the exception that we use the boundaries 500’ from 
rural residential and 1000’ from sensitive uses.  Ekberg/Pasin seconded. 
 
Mr. Gagliano said that he agreed that putting a use in this particular zone could be a 
mistake and also agreed that we shouldn’t put the city at risk.  He stated that the 
economic benefit to patients is that they can grow their own supply and work together 
which is less expensive.  He suggested that they not do this in the ED but within 
medical facilities.   
 
Mr. Atkins said that one of the conditions was that no more than 10 patients could be in 
a collective garden and wondered if you could have one set of 10 on one day and 
another set of 10 on another day.  Ms. Kester said that this is directly from the RCW and 
she wasn’t sure exactly what it said but that the intent was that you can only have 10 for 
each garden.  Mr. Atkins wondered how we would ensure that.  Ms. Kester said that if 
you pass the interim ordinance it will be a conditional use permit, were they comfortable 
with that or did they want to add that an appropriate process be developed.  Mr. Ekberg 
said since we have not had any actual applicants we have no way to judge if the 
conditional use permit process is effective.  Mr. Atkins said that the conditions would be 
subject to the hearing examiners review.  Ms. Kester went over what some of the 
conditions could be.  Mr. Dolan suggested that an appropriate licensing procedure be 
developed to assure compliance with state requirements be recommended to the city 
council.   
 
Mr. Coughlin wondered if we are adding work for our police department.  Mr. Dolan said 
he has discussed this with Chief Davis and he does not view this as a significant issue 
for his department. 
 
Mr. Atkins made a friendly amendment to the motion that we recommend to the council 
that they consider the creation of a licensing process to assure compliance with state 
requirements and that the conditions are met.  Ekberg/Pasin accepted the friendly 
amendment. 
 

Consent Agenda - 2c 
Page 4 of 10



The motion failed with Pasin and Ekberg voting in favor and Coughlin, Gagliano and 
Baldwin voting against.     
 
Mr. Gagliano asked about the state initiative.  Ms. Kester said that they had just 
received the update and it was about legalizing marijuana.  Ms. Kester said she could 
investigate whether the interim could be extended for another six months.  Ms. Kester 
asked if they would like to have collective gardens as a work study session at the next 
meeting and everyone agreed.   
 
Mr. Ekberg pointed out that they have spent enough time on this and in the eight 
months this ordinance has been in place no one has applied. 
 
 MOTION:  Move to recommend prohibiting collective gardens. Baldwin/Pasin –  
 
Baldwin asked if that undoes any kind of restrictions.  Ms. Kester then said that lapsing 
the interim ordinance means our code is silent prohibiting means we prohibit. 
 
The motion failed with Baldwin voting in favor and Coughlin, Ekberg and Gagliano 
opposed.  Pasin abstained. 
 
Mr. Dolan said that perhaps they would like to communicate to the city council that they 
were divided on this issue and perhaps the commission could move on to other items.   
He stated that it might be better to deal with this after the initiative election in November.   
 
Mr. Atkins asked that staff put together a recommendation statement for adoption at the 
next meeting regarding what Mr. Dolan has just stated.  Mr. Gagliano asked if they 
could come up with language for allowing them as medical facilities.  Mr. Dolan 
cautioned the commission on this and creating a huge enforcement problem.  Mr. 
Gagliano said that we should craft language that eliminates that problem.  Mr. Gagliano 
said that he didn’t feel like only allowing them on industrial vacant land was the answer.   
   
Mr. Pasin asked for a definition of delivery. 
 
Mr. Atkins also asked that their concerns be communicated to the council.   
 

Zoning Code Text Amendments – Discussion on text amendment process and 
potential code changes. 

 
Ms. Kester said that she is working on language regarding the zoning code text 
amendment process.   She asked about frequency of review of zoning code text 
amendments.  State law requires once a year.  She suggested that there be a docket 
schedule perhaps quarterly or bi annually.  Mr. Pasin asked if it was reasonable to do it 
on a quarterly basis and Mr. Dolan said that it may reduce our work load.  Mr. Ekberg 
asked in a typical year how many text amendments are received and Ms. Kester 
estimated 10.  The planning and building committee meets every other month.    Mr. 
Atkins stated that he didn’t want to lose the flexibility in changing the zoning code.  Ms. 

Consent Agenda - 2c 
Page 5 of 10



Kester stated that this schedule would allow for planning workloads rather than just 
reacting to applications whenever they are received.  Mr. Coughlin asked if we could 
provide a mechanism for an emergency and Mr. Dolan said that yes if they can 
convince the city council to sponsor the amendment then they can bypass the docketing 
process.     Everyone agreed that a docketing process was the best approach. 
 
Ms. Kester stated that within the comprehensive plan map amendment we ask that 
applicants hold community meetings.  She wondered if for area wide rezones the 
Planning Commission would like to create a similar process.  She stated that perhaps 
two meetings was too many as it is a lot of money for an applicant to put out without 
even having gone through the docketing process.  You could require that after the 
council accepted it then they do a community meeting.  Mr. Pasin said that he agreed 
that after their application is accepted is when they hold a community meeting.  He 
stated that for the most part the community does not show up at these meetings.  Mr. 
Dolan said that we have a public hearing so what is the need for a community meeting.  
Ms. Kester went over the history and why the council had adopted the requirement for 
two meetings for comp plan amendments.  She gave examples of recent area wide 
rezones.  Mr. Atkins agreed that it should be after the application is accepted but he 
didn’t see the need for it as we hold several meetings. 
   
Ms. Kester said that she would write language reflecting that the Planning Commission 
may hold several public meetings.   
 
Mr. Dolan said that staff’s intent is to have criteria for the commission to review at your 
next meeting.   
 
Ms. Kester said the downtown planning and visioning committee has had two meetings 
and should have the characterization report in front of you in June.  The committee is 
looking at having an open house on June 27th to present that report to the committee 
and to solicit comments on a vision statement.  She stated that an intern will be helping 
to manage that open house.   
 
Mr. Gagliano stated that the view basin model project is under way and they have 38 
student volunteers.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Move to adjourn at 7:20 p.m.  Ekberg/Gagliano – Motion carried.   

Consent Agenda - 2c 
Page 6 of 10



City of Gig Harbor Planning Commission 
Work Study Session 

Planning and Building Conference Room 
May 17, 2012 

5:00 pm 
 
PRESENT:  Harris Atkins, Craig Baldwin, Reid Ekberg, Jim Pasin, Bill Coughlin and 
Rick Gagliano.  Michael Fisher was absent.  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Staff:  Tom Dolan and Jennifer Kester 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  at 5:00 p.m.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   
 
Mr. Pasin asked that on the 3rd page in the next to the last paragraph the sentence 
stating he had said that not much staff time had been spent on this issue, be stricken as 
he did not think he had said that.  Mr. Atkins asked that on the 2nd page, the words “like 
a” be added prior to the words “food supplement” in his comments.  Mr. Gagliano said 
he had said “limited” rather than “outdated” in the fourth paragraph on page three.    
 
 MOTION:  Move to approve the minutes of May 3rd, 2012 as amended  – 
Pasin/Ekberg - Motion carried. 
 
WORK STUDY SESSION: 
 
Medical Cannabis Collective Gardens 
 
Mr. Atkins stated that after the last meeting he had given this some thought and would 
like to revisit this issue and distributed a memo to the commission outlining the possible 
options on this issue.  He then went over Initiative 502.  Mr. Gagliano asked about the 
option for extending the existing interim regulations and how that would work.  Ms. 
Kester explained that the Planning Commission will have to take the issue up again 
when the extension ends.  Mr. Gagliano pointed out that extending the regulations 
would also give us an opportunity to see what happens with the cities that prohibited 
collective gardens.   
 
Mr. Dolan noted that he had consulted with the City Attorney on her recommendation on 
extending the interim ordinance and she indicated that she could recommend to the City 
Council that the extension would be appropriate and carry little risk.   
 
Ms. Kester went over the possible locations for a collective garden in the ED zone.   
 
Mr. Ekberg voiced his concern for spending any further time on this issue and stated 
that he still felt that they should make the interim ordinance permanent.  Mr. Coughlin 

Consent Agenda - 2c 
Page 7 of 10



stated that he felt they just didn’t have enough information to do anything but extend the 
interim ordinance.  Mr. Baldwin agreed.   
 
Discussion followed on what would be required for a collective garden to be started on a 
site in the ED.   
 
 MOTION:  Move to recommend to City Council that the interim ordinance be 
extended.  Pasin/Coughlin –  
 
Discussion followed on the reasons for this recommendation.  Mr. Gagliano said that the 
reasons are clear from the last meeting.  Mr. Pasin said that the upcoming initiative had 
a great influence.  Mr. Atkins pointed out that the location of them in the ED is also a 
concern.  
 
The motion passed with 4 in favor, 0 opposed and 1 abstention.   
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Ms. Kester stated that she had been working on the housekeeping amendments and 
various additions to those and therefore had not been able to work on the zoning code 
amendments.   
 
She briefed the commission on changes to state law regarding the timelines for 
approval of preliminary plats and final plats.   
 
Ms. Kester stated that Dawn Stanton will be at their next meeting to present the 
inventory and characterization report on the downtown.  Discussion continued on what 
is being referred to as the “common sense amendments”.  She then went over the 
visioning committee’s work and how the open house on June 27th might be organized.   
 
Mr. Gagliano briefed everyone on the work that is being done by a group of students in 
creating a model of the downtown.   
 
Discussion continued on the methods for gathering people’s ideas on the downtown 
vision.  Mr. Atkins suggested that perhaps the visioning committee could have a booth 
at the Maritime Gig to gather ideas and opinions.   
 
Mr. Coughlin asked for a status update on the kayak club storage at the city park.  Mr. 
Dolan updated everyone and stated that the matter will be going before the parks 
commission.  Discussion followed on the potential for having some public kayak 
storage.   
 
 MOTION:  Move to adjourn.  Pasin/Ekberg – Motion carried.   

Consent Agenda - 2c 
Page 8 of 10



City of Gig Harbor Planning Commission 
Work Study Session 

Planning and Building Conference Room 
June 7, 2012 

5:00 pm 
 
PRESENT:  Harris Atkins, Craig Baldwin, Reid Ekberg, Jim Pasin, Bill Coughlin and 
Rick Gagliano.  Michael Fisher was absent.  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Staff:  Tom Dolan and Jennifer Kester 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  at 5:00 p.m.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   
 
 MOTION:  Move to approve the minutes from May 17th as written.  Pasin/Ekberg 
– Motion carried 
 
WORK STUDY SESSION: 
 

1. Medical Cannabis Collective Gardens – Review of written recommendation to 
extend interim ordinance 

 
Mr. Atkins stated that his only comment was that he would like to add the word 
“permanent” between the words “appropriate” and “location” in item number 3.  Mr. 
Pasin agreed.  Everyone agreed it was ready for the chairs signature.   

 
2. Downtown Historic Inventory and Characterization Report – Presentation by 

Lita Dawn Stanton 
 
Ms. Stanton stated that she and Rick Gagliano had gone to Olympia and given a 
presentation for a grant to construct the model of the downtown.  She presented the 
report and said that it will be used as the basis for the model.  Ms. Kester stated that the 
Downtown Planning and Vision Committee had looked at the area where the 2009 
inventory had been done and had asked that the report focus on the downtown and 
Judson St. area.  Ms. Stanton illustrated a map of what they had learned in the 
interviews as to what people felt was the downtown.  Ms. Stanton went over the 
contents of the report and how it was laid out.  Mr. Gagliano asked if there was a tally of 
how many buildings were eligible for national historic status, how many were community 
landmarks, etc?  Ms. Stanton said that she could do that.   She then went over some of 
the historic buildings and the reasons for their historic status.  Discussion continued on 
the districts and how they should be defined.  Mr. Pasin brought up how this might 
relate to the Design Manual.  Ms. Kester noted that she had included the council bill 
regarding the downtown preservation and planning process.   She outlined the process 
and the role of the Planning Commission in the amendments and how this report could 
be used in the analysis of the amendments.  Mr. Gagliano made some suggestions on 

Consent Agenda - 2c 
Page 9 of 10



how the inventory map could be laid out.  Mr. Pasin pointed out that ineligible didn’t 
necessarily mean that it wasn’t a loved building.  Mr. Atkins suggested that they solicit 
input at the open house as to what buildings the community felt were important.  
Discussion followed on what amendments would encourage redevelopment.  Ms. 
Kester suggested that perhaps they invite the Building Official Paul Rice to discuss what 
the ramification may be from a building and fire standpoint.  Mr. Pasin reminded 
everyone that the goal was to stay with some simple amendments.  Further discussion 
was held on various buildings downtown.  Ms. Kester said that she would the five 
selected sample buildings and apply today’s codes and identify what the problems 
would be for them to redevelop.  Incentives for first floor retail and restaurant uses were 
discussed.   

 
3. Downtown Zoning Code Amendments – Introduction 
  

Ms. Kester went over the process for these amendments and the timing of the possible 
adoption.  She stated that the commission should look at the end of September or the 
beginning of October for forwarding their recommendation to the City Council.  She then 
went over the elements to be presented at the open house on June 27th.  Additionally 
she noted that there will be another open house once a vision statement has been 
developed.  Mr. Gagliano went over how the model of the view basin is being designed.  
Discussion followed on what kind of financial incentives could be offered to rehabilitation 
of existing buildings  and Ms. Kester said she would do further research for the next 
meeting.   
 
Mr. Atkins stated that he will be presenting the Shoreline Master Program to the City 
Council on Monday night.  He stated that he wanted to point out some of the good 
things that the plan does and asked for everyone’s input.   
 
Mr. Gagliano distributed some information from the City of Camas on what they had 
adopted regarding collective gardens. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 MOTION:  Move to adjourn at 6:50 p.m.  Baldwin/Pasin – Motion carried.   

Consent Agenda - 2c 
Page 10 of 10



City of Gig Harbor 
Downtown Planning and Vision Committee 

April 25, 2012 
4:00 p.m. 

Planning and Building Conference Room 
 
 
PRESENT:  Jill Guernsey, David Fisher, Paul Kadzik, Jenn Kester, Ken Malich, Sagen 
(sp?) Thomas partner in GKS, Jerry Myers, Kent Kingman, David Boe, John Cologne, 
Chuck Meachum, John Barline, Tom Dolan. 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
Ms. Guernsey noted that John Barline and Tom Dolan were in another meeting so she 
suggested that the discussion of the Haub project wait until they were present.   
 
Kadzik moved to accept the minutes as presented.  The minutes were adopted by 
consensus.   
 

1. Downtown Historic Inventory and Characterization Report – presentation of 
first section 

Ms. Kester went over the report and stated that Dawn Stanton is asking that the group 
look at the report, give their comments and review for any errors.  She stated that the 
Planning Commission will be using this report for some of their analysis of upcoming 
amendments.  Ms. Kester explained what it meant when a building was ineligible on the 
registry.  She also noted that it needed to be decided was whether this report should be 
expanded to other areas of the city other than the downtown.  Ms. Kester explained that 
personnel from the history museum are also reviewing the document for accuracy.  Mr. 
Malich emphasized the importance of defining the downtown.   
 
John Barline and Tom Dolan joined the meeting at 4:15. 
 
Ms. Guernsey noted that in her interviews with people, everyone has a different view of 
downtown.  She emphasized the need to move forward sooner rather than later.  
Everyone agreed the Judson district should be added.   
 

2. Haub project presentation by proponents 

Ms. Guernsey noted that there are two separate ownership groups that are looking at 
possibilities in developing their property downtown.  She emphasized that nothing has 
been approved or applied for, this is just for discussion since it is a new and different 
idea for the downtown.  Sagen Thomas, Gary Myers and Kent Kingman introduced 
themselves and explained how they came together to start this venture with Joe Pond 
and Wesley Rickard property.  John Barline gave a brief overview of the Haub’s 
properties.  He stated that they have had David Boe working on several ideas for the 
properties but had run up against code requirements that had prevented them from 

Consent Agenda - 2d 
Page 1 of 7



doing what they thought would be best for the community.  He stated that they then had 
David create something with all the properties without consideration of the code, just 
what they would like.  Mr. Barline stated that they would enter into a process of 
including the community in creating something for these properties and then come back 
to the city for a development agreement.  David Fisher asked if there had been any 
demographic studies done or use studies.  Two of the owners want residences there, 
financial services, but have not done a market survey yet. We have also talked to some 
restaurants.  Mr. Barline said that since this is not that large of a piece of property it may 
not be feasible to pay a consultant to do a large study that would probably not tell them 
anything they didn’t already know.  Discussion followed on the importance of providing 
access to the water.  Mr. Boe stated there were six different properties.  He displayed a 
drawing of what the site would look like developed to the current code.  He stated that 
he used the comp plan as a guide instead and went over their draft design.  Mr. Barline 
went over the access options.   
 
Ken Malich spoke about what is important to Gig Harbor and cautioned everyone about 
creating too much office space.   
 
Mr. Barline stated that the boat building, although new should always look old.  He 
pointed out how the design reflected the look of the old agricultural warehouse and that 
even the office space doesn’t look like an office.  Discussion followed on the most 
beneficial uses.   
 
Mr. Kadzik stated the he liked the concept and felt that it was important to be aware of 
the scale of the buildings at street level.  Mr. Kadzik had to leave to attend another 
meeting. 
 
Ms. Guernsey pointed out how we are a fishing village and we don’t have a fish market.  
Discussion followed on a market concept where you could purchase flowers, fish, 
bread, etc.   
 
They then discussed the need for a boutique hotel and the difficulty in providing that in 
the downtown when it would be out of scale.   
 
Ms. Guernsey expressed how she liked the phrase “a series of experiences” and felt 
that was a good way of explaining the downtown.   
 
Public input was discussed and the importance of including everyone in the surrounding 
area.  Process was then discussed.  Ms. Guernsey stated that she felt it was great to 
have these discussions with the Planning Commission and Ms. Kester cautioned them 
about talking to members of the Design Review Board as they may have to make a 
decision on an application at some point.   
 
Ms. Guernsey invited the development group to come back to the committee once they 
have had more discussions with the community and have perhaps made some 
changes.  Mr. Dolan stated that this will require a change to our development 

Consent Agenda - 2d 
Page 2 of 7



agreement regulations to allow demonstration projects in other parts of the city.    Ms. 
Kester emphasized that much more work will have to be done to have a solid project 
before entering into a development agreement or change the code.   
 
Discussion continued on the best way to move forward with the project.   
 

3. Review of proposed work schedule 

Ms. Kester went over the schedule for upcoming committee meetings.  She asked that 
committee members look at the schedule and let staff know if they have conflicts or 
vacations scheduled.  Discussion followed on what type of information should be 
provided at the open house and how to facilitate ideas.  Ms. Kester stated that June 27th 
is slated for the open house.  She stated that July will be council adoption of the 
inventory and characterization report and drafting the vision statement.  Discussion 
continued on the goal to have the vision statement included in next years 
comprehensive plan and how to craft the statement.   
 
 4. Work tasks for interns 
 
Ms. Guernsey suggested polling people and compiling information as a possible task for 
an intern.  Ms. Kester suggested also organizing the materials and information for the 
open house.  She suggested that the committee bring community images that they like 
and don’t like to the May meeting.   
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:15 p.m.  

Consent Agenda - 2d 
Page 3 of 7



City of Gig Harbor 
Downtown Planning and Vision Committee 

June 12, 2012 
4:00 p.m. 

Planning and Building Conference Room 
 
 
PRESENT:  Jill Guernsey, Harris Atkins, David Fisher, Paul Kadzik, Jennifer Kester, 
Lita Dawn Stanton and Cory Ragan. 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS 
 

1. Open House – June 27th 4pm to 6:30pm 
a. Advertising 
Ms. Kester asked about what level of advertising should be done.  Mr. Ragan 
distributed a flyer he had developed and proposed to distribute within the 
downtown.  Mr. Kadzik suggested that Laureen Lund our Marketing Director 
should do a press release.  Mr. Ragan stated that Laureen was putting it in the 
Gigabyte.  Mr. Kadzik also suggested that we contact Patch and Gig Harbor Life.  
Ms. Stanton suggested that the flyer have a historic reference in order to get 
more people interested.  It was decided to call it a Town Hall Meeting and ask 
how do we preserve our heritage, how do we create a vibrant future for 
downtown.  Mr. Kadzik also noted that the flyer could be sent to all the local 
bloggers.  Ms. Guernsey said that she would write an op/ed piece for the paper 
and it was decided that the flyer would be mailed to everyone in the view basin.  
Discussion followed and the following bullet points were developed: 

 
• What’s your vision for downtown 
• Historic character 

 What is it? 
 How important 

   Worth saving 
• Downtown Redevelopment 

 What suits Gig Harbor? 
 

b. Proposed Stations 
Ms. Kester went over some of the discussion held at the Planning Commission 
regarding the proposed stations.   Open discussion was held on ideas for the 
stations and the following were decided on. 

 
• Showcase (History) – Lita Dawn Stanton 
 Case studies – 5 buildings 

Consent Agenda - 2d 
Page 4 of 7



 Data Inventory – Educate 
 
• Buildings that Belong – Harris Atkins 
 Streetscape Images – 5 
 Use dots 
 
• Uses – What’s missing – David Fisher 
 Words 
 Groceries 
 Bakery 
 Public Market 
 Fish Market 
 Lodging 
 
• Vision Words – Jill Guernsey 

 
• Where’s downtown – Paul Kadzik 
 Dot the downtown 
 

Further discussion was held on how to moderate the stations and gather the 
data.   

 
c. Questionnaire/Survey – hard copy and internet 

 
Ms. Kester asked about a survey via hard copy and survey monkey or something 
similar.  The questions that were being asked via the stations were removed.  It 
was decided to put the optional contact information on the bottom of the survey 
and also to put a reference to the online survey on the flyer.   The surveys will be 
passed out as people enter the open house. 

 
d. Committee member tasks 

 
Ms. Kester went over the tasks that each committee member had volunteered to 
do.  She noted that Mr. Ragan will forward the flyer to committee members.  Mr. 
Dolan reminded Ms. Guernsey that an op/ed piece would have to be turned in to 
the Gateway next week.   

 
The meeting was adjourned. 

Consent Agenda - 2d 
Page 5 of 7



City of Gig Harbor 
Downtown Planning and Vision Committee 

July 25, 2012 
4:00 p.m. 

Planning and Building Conference Room 
 
 
PRESENT:  Jill Guernsey, Harris Atkins, Denny Richards, Chuck Hunter, Ken Malich, 
David Fisher, Paul Kadzik, Jennifer Kester and Cory Ragan. 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
Ms. Kester gave a brief report on the Town Hall meeting that had been held in June.   
She went over some of the data that had been compiled from the meeting.  Discussion 
was held on ways to display the data and what some of the data indicated.   
 
They talked about what people defined as the downtown, noting that it was basically 
along the entire waterfront, encompassing areas 1-7 on the map provided at the town 
hall meeting.  Discussion followed on the best ways to get the results of the town 
meeting back to the public in late September.  Ms. Kester went over ways the vision 
could possibly address both residential and business within these areas.  Mr. Malich 
stated that he felt that the business areas were more weighted as the individual votes 
indicated those areas.   
 
Mr. Ragan noted that so far he had received 64 surveys and that approximately 120 
people attended the town hall meeting.   
 
Ms. Guernsey stated that she had heard some people suggest that it not be called the 
downtown but rather the waterfront.  Ms. Kester cautioned that whatever it’s called, it 
will stick.  Mr. Kadzik spoke about how the Mainstreet Group had examined branding 
and perhaps they could look into that.   
 
Ms. Guernsey noted that we are committed to having a vision statement by the end of 
the year and asked about the next steps in achieving that goal.    Mr. Fisher pointed out 
that the signage coming off the freeway says City Center and it was suggested that 
perhaps it should say waterfront.  Mr. Atkins stated that he felt that calling it downtown 
might imply some sort of competition with uptown and the waterfront was more special.   
 
Ms. Kester asked if staff should develop a list of possible terms for the next meeting 
along with a map to define the area.  Mr. Fisher stated that whatever the term is, it 
should not consist of more than three words.  Ms. Kester asked if staff should create 

Consent Agenda - 2d 
Page 6 of 7



vision phrases or start on the mapping first.  Mr. Kadzik stated that he felt the mapping 
should come first.   
 
Mr. Kadzik suggested that some of the uses could be combined, such as bakery, fish 
market, etc were all grocery related.  Discussion followed on ways to group the uses 
and tally them.   
 
It was noted how often walkability came up in the surveys.  Mayor Hunter noted that 
perhaps there are ways to make the sidewalks wider and Ms. Guernsey noted that 
sometimes narrower sidewalks encourage people to say hello.   
 
Ms. Kester stated that the next meeting will be August 22nd.  Ms. Guernsey encouraged 
everyone to start focusing on some visioning statements.  Everyone agreed that the 
meeting would go from 4:00 pm to 6:00 pm.   
 
Discussion was held on ways to encourage building owners to make some of the 
improvements suggested in the surveys.   
 
The meeting was adjourned. 
 
 

Consent Agenda - 2d 
Page 7 of 7



 
 
 
 

DATE of MEETING:  April 19, 2012 
 
TIME:      3:00 p.m. 
 
LOCATION:    Public Works Conference Room 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Councilmembers Ekberg, Payne, and Payne  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  City Administrator Dennis Richards, City Engineer Stephen Misiurak, Senior 

Engineer Jeff Langhelm, Operations Superintendent Marco Malich, and Asst. 
City Clerk Maureen Whitaker 

 
OTHERS PRESENT:   none 
 
SCRIBE:     Maureen Whitaker 
 

 
1.  PUBLIC WORKS TRUST FUND (PWTF) 2014 APPLICATION. 
 
DISCUSSION POINTS 

Stephen Misiurak explained that On March 15 of this year, the Public Works Trust Fund Board began 
accepting applications  for  infrastructure and street  improvement projects. This year embarks upon a 
newly  revamped application  system and process  that  is much more user  friendly  to  the applicant as 
opposed to  in years past. The new application process  is completely on  line and once the assembled 
information is compiled, only takes less than a half hour to complete. 
 
The new program provides for up to $15,000,000 in agency funding with zero local match. Loan interest 
repayment  rates  vary  between  0.5  percent  up  to  2.0  percent  depending  on  the  loan  repayment 
schedule in years. The City previously was successful at the procurement of a $10,000,000 low interest 
loan for completion of the Phase 1 Wastewater Treatment Plant facility in addition to the just recently 
approved $5,950,000  low  interest  loan for the Phase 2 WWTP. Both  loans’ terms were at 0.5  interest 
rates. 
 
For this application cycle, staff will be submitting on the following street improvement projects located 
on the city’s west side and consists of the following roadway improvements: 
 
Point Fosdick Gap Sidewalk Improvements: 
This project would complete a meandering pervious concrete sidewalk between the current terminuses 
at Harbor Country Glen to Briarwood. A storm water bio swale or equivalent would serve as the water 
quality and quantity treatment control. This project has achieved ninety percent design and has been 
placed on hold due to funding constraints. Estimated cost is $300,000. 
 

Consent Agenda - 2e 
Page 1 of 6



RECOMMENDATION 

Councilmembers Payne and Ekberg suggested applying for the grant for sidewalks on both sides.  The 
council committee agreed that this project is a high priority for pedestrian safety. 
 
 
50th Street Improvement Project: 
This project would complete  the uncompleted  roadway gap between  the KLM Park and 38th Avenue 
and would  consist of  curb,  gutter  and  sidewalk on both  sides of  the  street,  street  illumination,  and 
storm water  improvements along with a new fish‐friendly storm water cross culvert. This project has 
achieved  eighty  percent  design  completion  and  would  have  to  go  through  moderate  levels  of 
permitting due to the fish culvert analysis. Estimated cost is $1,100,000. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

Councilmember Ekberg stated that since it is paved now, he would rather allocate funding towards 38th 
Avenue sidewalks.  The council committee agreed that this is a lower priority.  
 

 
38th Avenue Street Improvements: 
This  project  is  broken  into  two  separate  sub  projects  and  would  improve  38th  Avenue  between 
City/County limits to the south to Hunt Street to the north. Improvements would consist of curb, gutter 
and  sidewalk  on  both  sides  of  the  street  along  with  underground  storm  drainage  improvements, 
addition of a center turn  lane at various  locations, street  illumination, and  full roadway cross section 
rebuild.  This  project  has  had minimal  engineering  due  to  the  extensive  costs  involved.  Permitting 
difficulty would  be moderate  due  to  adjacent wetlands  and  nearby  community  impacts.  Estimated 
costs for Phase 1 is $9,000,000 and Phase 2 is $5,000,000. 
 
These  projects  were  selected  for  possible  funding  due  to  the  proximity  of  these  projects  to  one 
another, the projects provide connectivity for vehicular and pedestrian traffic, and all are currently on 
the City’s 6‐year Transportation Improvement Plan. 
 
The application due date  is May 11, 2012. Upon closing of  the application  submissions, PWTF Board 
staff will complete the review through a dialogue with the agencies pertaining to their project review 
questions and comments. 
 
Selection  and  recommendations  for  those  successful projects will be  forwarded  to  the  PWTF Board 
meeting in August. The Board’s recommendation for funding will be forwarded to the state Legislature 
for consideration and final approval of any, some or all the projects will be completed in October 2012‐
May 2013.  
 
Enclosures: PWTF Funding 2014 Process, Location Map of Proposed Improvements, Point Fosdick Gap 
Sidewalk Improvements, 50th Street Improvements. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

Councilmember Payne asked if Pierce County has been contacted. The council committee agreed that 
this project should be tied in with Pierce County, which would wrap the sidewalks around the schools.  
Mr. Payne said that he could contact Stan Fleming.  It was recommended that Mr. Misiurak contact 
Pierce County requesting a letter a financial participation as it would be a significant benefit to them.  
Councilmember Payne also suggested exploring a “special purpose district”. This would result in the City 
providing funding for engineering costs at approximately $5M.  A lengthy discussion ensued about 

Consent Agenda - 2e 
Page 2 of 6



funding. Councilmember Ekberg expressed his concern about where the City funding would come from 
since this project would need to be completed in three years.  
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 3:45 p.m. 

 
                Respectively submitted, 

 
                Maureen Whitaker 

 
         

 
 

Consent Agenda - 2e 
Page 3 of 6



 
 
 
 

DATE of MEETING:  July 19, 2012 
 
TIME:      3:00 p.m. 
 
LOCATION:    Public Works Conference Room 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Councilmembers Ekberg, Payne, and Perrow  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  City Administrator Dennis Richards, City Engineer Steve Misiurak, Sr. Engineers 

Emily Appleton and Jeff Langhelm, WWTP Supervisor Darrell Winans, Project 
Engineer Marcos McGraw, and Asst. City Clerk Maureen Whitaker 

 
OTHERS PRESENT:   none 
 
SCRIBE:     Maureen Whitaker 
 

 
1.  DONKEY CREEK PROJECT UPDATE. 
 
DISCUSSION POINTS 

Emily Appleton stated that all permits are almost in. The project will go out to bid at the end of August 
with award of the project in November. The utility companies will start their relocation work the week 
of August 1st taking 6‐8 weeks. Traffic control will be present. There will be periodic road closures on N. 
Harborview Drive for 2‐5 days.  CenturyLink and Puget Sound Energy (gas) may need to close the road 
due to not enough space to work and a safety issue with moving the high‐pressure gas line.  There will 
be similar impacts for the relocation of the sewer line.  Austin Street will be closed as a staging area.    
 
Ms. Appleton also reported that a small survey contract is needed to survey data points for the utility 
work.  
 
Public Outreach – A public open house is scheduled for July 25th at the Harbor History Museum to 
present the project and address any public concerns.  Ms. Appleton stated that the city is aware of the 
concerns of the residents and businesses in the area. The local residents do not want night work while 
the businesses prefer it.  Examples of the open house project posters were provided and discussed. 
 
Councilmember Payne briefly addressed the groundbreaking event for Congressman Dicks. The 
groundbreaking will take place on September 7th or 21st with a reception at the Museum.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 

There was a suggestion to order three more CMS boards for the project.  
 
 

Consent Agenda - 2e 
Page 4 of 6



2.  2012 CHIP SEAL PROJECT. 
 
DISCUSSION POINTS 

Jeff Langhelm reported on the status of the asphalt overlay and chip sealing.  The asphalt overlay 
portion has been completed and the raising of the utilities will be completed by the end of next week.  
The next phase is the chip seal with a fog seal applied a few days afterwards, which will have an impact 
to motorists, as it cannot be driven upon for 2‐3 hours.  Mr. Langhelm discussed that the chip seal mix 
will include an increased amount of oil, which will wear better. Last year the city used the average from 
the WSDOT Standard Specifications and has since learned that it didn’t have enough oil in it.  The fog 
seal will increase the longevity of the chip seal and make the roadway black. The affected roadways will 
be striped all at once.   
 
The work also included scrapping the old manholes and replacing with hinged manholes for better loss 
prevention. Mr. Langhelm reported that this program saved approximately $49‐$50K. 
 
Councilmember Perrow stated the work was impressive and efficient. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

Councilmember Perrow requested that the weeds be killed at the intersections to improve safety and 
visibility.   
 
3.  MARITIME PIER, RAMP AND FLOAT PROJECT UPDATE.  
 
DISCUSSION POINTS 

Marcos McGraw reported that the construction contract was awarded to Redside Construction. Work is 
scheduled to begin the week of July 30th.  All work should be substantially complete by the first part of 
October.  Work will be completed by the waterside from the asphalt side of the pier.  
 
The existing bulkhead will be covered with decking for public viewing.  There was a brief discussion 
about a ribbon cutting ceremony at the end of September or early October.  
 
4.   LIFT STATION 3A REHAB & GREASE INTERCEPTOR INSPECTIONS. 
DISCUSSION POINTS 

Lift Station 3A ‐ Darrell Winans provided an update of LS 3A stating it was in poor condition and needed 
to be rehabilitated as soon as possible. He has already met with HDR Engineering in an effort to move 
forward. Mr. Winans stated that the funding will come from lift stations 12, 14, and 16.  
 
DISCUSSION POINTS 

Grease Interceptor Inspections ‐ Mr. Winans reported that as part of the inspections, WWTP staff are 
educating the businesses to help them understand the maintenance requirements of city code. This 
takes a great deal of time and labor but a necessary step in the proper operation of the plant. 
 
COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 
Councilmember Perrow stated that the streetscapes are being overlooked. He said that on Harborview 
and Pioneer, right of the wall is full of weeds and said many of the planters are in need of attention. 
Harborview Drive and the Maritime Pier areas need to be weeded and look rough. He further requested 
that the concrete at the old Ferry Landing needs to be pressure washed.  Cushman Trail on backside of 
Goodwill – needs bark or something.  
 

Consent Agenda - 2e 
Page 5 of 6



Councilmember Payne suggested that the city implement having the planter strips adopted by the 
businesses.  
 
Councilmember Payne also  reported  that he and Councilmember Perrow attended  the kick‐off of  the 
new play zone. He stated that it was not an ask event and the first non‐solicitated donation came in for 
$25K.   
 
Meeting adjourned at 4:35 p.m. 

 
                Respectively submitted, 

 
                Maureen Whitaker 

 
         

 
 

Consent Agenda - 2e 
Page 6 of 6



Consent Agenda - 3a 
Page 1 of 1



Consent Agenda - 4 
Page 1 of 5



Consent Agenda - 4 
Page 2 of 5



Consent Agenda - 4 
Page 3 of 5



Consent Agenda - 4 
Page 4 of 5



Consent Agenda - 4 
Page 5 of 5



Consent Agenda - 5 
Page 1 of 2



Consent Agenda - 5 
Page 2 of 2



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 1 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 2 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 3 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 4 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 5 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 6 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 7 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 8 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 9 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 10 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 11 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 12 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 13 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 14 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 15 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 16 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 17 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 18 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 19 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 20 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 21 of 22



Consent Agenda - 6 
Page 22 of 22



Consent Agenda - 7 
Page 1 of 7



Consent Agenda - 7 
Page 2 of 7



Consent Agenda - 7 
Page 3 of 7



Consent Agenda - 7 
Page 4 of 7



Consent Agenda - 7 
Page 5 of 7



Consent Agenda - 7 
Page 6 of 7



Consent Agenda - 7 
Page 7 of 7



Consent Agenda - 8 
Page 1 of 8



Consent Agenda - 8 
Page 2 of 8



Consent Agenda - 8 
Page 3 of 8



Consent Agenda - 8 
Page 4 of 8



Consent Agenda - 8 
Page 5 of 8



Consent Agenda - 8 
Page 6 of 8



Consent Agenda - 8 
Page 7 of 8



Consent Agenda - 8 
Page 8 of 8



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 1 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 2 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 3 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 4 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 5 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 6 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 7 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 8 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 9 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 10 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 11 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 12 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 13 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 14 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 15 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 16 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 17 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 18 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 19 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 20 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 21 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 22 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 23 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 24 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 25 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 26 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 27 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 28 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 29 of 30



Consent Agenda - 9 
Page 30 of 30



Consent Agenda - 10 
Page 1 of 5



Consent Agenda - 10 
Page 2 of 5



Consent Agenda - 10 
Page 3 of 5



Consent Agenda - 10 
Page 4 of 5



Consent Agenda - 10 
Page 5 of 5



Consent Agenda - 11 
Page 1 of 10



Consent Agenda - 11 
Page 2 of 10



Consent Agenda - 11 
Page 3 of 10



Consent Agenda - 11 
Page 4 of 10



Consent Agenda - 11 
Page 5 of 10



Consent Agenda - 11 
Page 6 of 10



Consent Agenda - 11 
Page 7 of 10



Consent Agenda - 11 
Page 8 of 10



Consent Agenda - 11 
Page 9 of 10



Consent Agenda - 11 
Page 10 of 10



Consent Agenda - 12 
Page 1 of 11



Consent Agenda - 12 
Page 2 of 11



Consent Agenda - 12 
Page 3 of 11



Consent Agenda - 12 
Page 4 of 11



Consent Agenda - 12 
Page 5 of 11



Consent Agenda - 12 
Page 6 of 11



Consent Agenda - 12 
Page 7 of 11



Consent Agenda - 12 
Page 8 of 11



Consent Agenda - 12 
Page 9 of 11



Consent Agenda - 12 
Page 10 of 11



Consent Agenda - 12 
Page 11 of 11



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 1 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 2 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 3 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 4 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 5 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 6 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 7 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 8 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 9 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 10 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 11 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 12 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 13 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 14 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 15 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 16 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 17 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 18 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 19 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 20 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 21 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 22 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 23 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 24 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 25 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 26 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 27 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 28 of 29



Consent Agenda - 13 
Page 29 of 29



New Business - 1 
Page 1 of 4



New Business - 1 
Page 2 of 4



New Business - 1 
Page 3 of 4



New Business - 1 
Page 4 of 4



New Business - 2 
Page 1 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 2 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 3 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 4 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 5 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 6 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 7 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 8 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 9 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 10 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 11 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 12 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 13 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 14 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 15 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 16 of 17



New Business - 2 
Page 17 of 17



New Business - 3 
Page 1 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 2 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 3 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 4 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 5 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 6 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 7 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 8 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 9 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 10 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 11 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 12 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 13 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 14 of 15



New Business - 3 
Page 15 of 15



Staff Report - 1 
Page 1 of 1


	CVRPAGE
	City Council
	Meeting

	CC 09-10-12 Agenda
	CA-1 CC 08-06-12 Special Meeting Minutes
	ADJOURN:

	CA-2a Quarterly Finance Report
	CA-2b PBC Minutes 06-04 8-06-12
	CA-2c PC 05-03 05-17 6-7
	CA-2d PVC Minutes 04-25 6-12 7-25-12
	CA-2e OPS Minutes 04-19 7-19-12
	CA-3a LL Assumpt Empire
	CA-4 R-sole source pumpout
	CA-5 R-Surplus Equip
	CA-6 R-Fee Resolution
	CA-7 QCD Old Burnham Dr
	CA-8 Fencing contract
	CA-9 Cushman Trail PW Trust Fund Contract
	CA-10 Eddon Beach Restore Escrow Agre
	CA-11 Eddon Park Amendment to Design Ctr
	CA-12 Eddon Survey Contract
	CA-13 WWTP Exp Phz 2 PWTF Loan Agre
	NB-1 O-parking
	NB-2 O-Collective Gardens
	NB-3 Rush Talmo DA agre-
	SR-1 CHA 1st year report



